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March 27, 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of
Posera-HDX Litd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Posera-HDX Ltd.

and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011 and the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes, which comprise a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

“PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Posera-HDX Ltd. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and their
financial performance and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

;ﬁWW LLP
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Waterloo, Ontario



POSERA-HDX LTD. (formerly POSERA-HDX INC.)
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in Canadian dollars)

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

ASSETS (Notes 12, 14, 16 and 22)

CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) $ 1,050,441 2,431,720
Accounts receivable (Notes 21 and 23) 3,118,902 3,241,359
Holdback receivable on the sale of Dexit Inc. (N&te - 200,000
Current portion of lease receivable (Note 6) 12,388 30,639
Inventory (Note 8) 1,211,219 1,209,621
Investment credits receivable - refundable (Note 7) 1,087,707 694,602
Prepaid expenses and deposits 240,888 204,214
6,721,545 8,012,155
NON-CURRENT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 9) 164,552 250,876
Deposit on leased premises 34,409 34,411
Lease receivable (Note 6) 28,881 35,469
Investment tax credits receivable - non-refundgliete 7) 1,262,692 1,013,879
Deferred income tax assets (Note 19) - 72,500
Intangible assets (Note 10) 4,701,300 6,220,150
Goodwill (Note 11) 4,330,746 6,639,033
$ 17,244,125 22,278,473
LIABILITIES (Note 22)
CURRENT
Bank indebtedness (Note 12) $ 256,784 181,746
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Notes2ll3and 23) 2,787,688 2,736,843
Provisions (Note 14) 210,000 -
Current portion of vehicle loans (Note 17) 10,215 25,749
Current portion of royalty payable (Note 15) 2,930 4,078
Current portion of notes payable (Note 16) 487,677 300,493
Income taxes payable (Note 19 and 14) 335,973 32,917
Conversion option (Note 18) - 35,556
Deferred revenue 2,078,921 1,839,356
6,170,188 5,156,738
NON-CURRENT
Deferred income tax liability (Note 19) 954,844 1,472,190
Vehicle loans (Note 17) 20,991 42,126
Royalty payable (Note 15) 119,242 467,231
Notes payable (Note 16) 491,842 975,063
7,757,107 8,113,348
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERSOF THE PARENT
SHARE CAPITAL (Note 20(a)) 50,790,093 50,790,093
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (Note 20(b, c)) 6,529,278 5,620,947
WARRANTS (Note 20(d)) - 766,973
DEFICIT (47,744,231) (42,951,007)
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (88,122) (61,881)
9,487,018 14,165,125
$ 17,244,125 22,278,473

Subsequent events (Note 28)

APPROVED BY THE BOARD

Signed "Louden Owe

Directol

Signed "David Del Chiart

Directol

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstei®ements
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POSERA-HDX LTD. (formerly POSERA-HDX INC.)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive L oss

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in Canadian dollars, except for number of common shar es)

Y ear-ended December 31,

2012 2011
REVENUE (Note 21) 16,446,106 $ 17,699,771
COST OF SALES (Note 21 and 24)
Cost of inventory (Note 8) 3,794,900 4,327,856
Technology (Note 7) 1,888,403 1,347,088
Operations and support 4,756,107 4,462,800
TOTAL COST OF SALES 10,439,410 10,137,744
GROSS PROFIT 6,006,696 7,562,027
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 21 and 24)
Sales and marketing 3,314,850 2,981,107
General and administrative (Note 14) 5,272,964 5,029,990
Impairment of assets (Note 10 and 11) 2,419,864 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 11,007,678 8,011,097
(5,000,982) (449,070)
OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)
Interest expense (Note 12, 15, 16 and 17) 300,677 344,423
Realized and unrealized loss (gain) on foreign exchange 779,2 (5,019)
Interest and other income (14,270) (10,938)
Gain on revaluation of financial instruments (Notes 15 and 18) (435,047) (184,810)
TOTAL OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSES (139,363) 143,656
NET LOSSBEFORE INCOME TAXES (4,861,619) (592,726)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RECOVERY)
Current (Note 14 and 19) 364,043 73,243
Deferred (Note 19) (432,438) (2,151,865)
NET (LOSS) INCOME, ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERSOF THE
PARENT (4,793,224) $ 1,485,896
Other comprehensive (loss) income on foreign translation ,242% 9,515
NET COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME, ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT (4,819,465) $ 1,495,411
BASIC (LOSS) INCOME PER SHARE
(Note 20(e)) (0.10) $ 0.03
DILUTED (LOSS) INCOME PER
SHARE (Note 20(e)) (0.10) $ 0.03
BASIC WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER
OF COMMON SHARES (in 000's) 48,434 45,951
DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER
OF COMMON SHARES (in 000's) 48,434 45,981

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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POSERA-HDX LTD. (formerly POSERA-HDX INC.)

Consolidated Statements of Changesin Equity

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in Canadian dollars)

Y ear sended December 31,

2012 2011
DEFICIT BEGINNING OF YEAR $ (42,951,007) $ (44,436,903)
Net (loss) income, attributable to owners of theepa (4,793,224) 1,485,896
DEFICIT END OF YEAR $ (47,744,231) $ (42,951,007)
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
LOSS BEGINNING OF YEAR $ (61,881) $ (71,396)
Other comprehensive (loss) gain on foreign traisiat (26,241) 9,515
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
LOSSEND OF YEAR $ (88,122) $ (61,881)
NET COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME, ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT $ (4,819,465) $ 1,495,411
SHARE CAPITAL BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 50,790,093 $ 49,882,776
Issued upon acquisitions - 483,076
Issued on exercise of stock options - 424,241
SHARE CAPITAL END OF YEAR (Note 20(a)) $ 50,790,093 $ 50,790,093
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 5,620,947 $ 5,752,901
Exercise of stock options - (308,423)
Stock based compensation 242,982 176,469
Expiry of Warrants (net of tax effect of $101,620(1 - $nil)) 665,349 -
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUSEND OF YEAR (Note 20(c)) $ 6,529,278 $ 5,620,947
WARRANTS BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 766,973 $ 766,973
Expiry of Warrants $ (766,973) $ -
WARRANTSEND OF YEAR (Note 20(d)) $ - $ 766,973

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsizigements
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POSERA-HDX LTD. (formerly POSERA-HDX INC.)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For theyears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in Canadian dollars)

Y ear s ended December 31,

2012 2011
NET (OUTFLOW) INFLOW OF CASH RELATED
TO THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES
OPERATING
Net (loss) income $ (4,793,224) $ 1,485,896
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of property, plant & equipment (Notg 9 142,466 148,340
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 10) 1,316,287 1,178,102
Amortization of deferred lease - (8,461)
Deferred income tax (recovery) expense (432,438) (2,151,865)
Tax on expiry of warrants recognized directly imgdbuted surplus (101,624) -
Gain on revaluation of financial instruments (Not&sand 18) (435,047) (184,810)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 11) 2,248,885 -
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 10 and 11) 170,979 -
Stock-based compensation expense (Note 20(b,c)) 242,982 176,469
Interest accretion (Note 15 and 214,94 190,57¢
Increase in provisions (Note : 210,00( -
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (Note 9 4,390 -
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange 4,407 4,740
(1,206,995) 838,990
Changes in working capital items (Note 26) 312,373 (563,447)
(894,622) 275,543
FINANCING
Repayment of vehicle loans (36,669) (30,236)
Issuance of vehicle loans - 24,749
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options (N2&¢s,b, c)) - 115,818
Repayment of lease liability - (24,428)
Reduction of convertible debenture principle - (62,282)
Payment of royalties (Note 15) (1,460) -
Repayment of notes payable (Note 16) (431,261) (687,366)
(469,390) (663,745)
INVESTING
Disposition of Dexit Inc., net of cash (Note 3) - 2,025,781
Acquisition of 2020 ITS Hospitality Assets (Note 3) - (285,000)
Acquisition of HDX Payment Processing Inc., netash (Note 3) - (147,725)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (N6je (80,503) (60,315)
Disposition of property, plant and equipment (N®ye 3,500 -
Acquisition of intangible assets (Note 10) (10,573) (3,329)
(87,576) 1,529,412
Foreign exchange (loss) gain on net cash and cpstiadents
held in a foreign curren (4,729) (3,054)
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OUTFLOW) INFLOV $ (1,456,317) $ 1,138,156
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF PERIOL 2,249,97. 1,111,81
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF PERIOIL $ 793,657 $ 2,249,974
FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS STATEMENT, NET CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE THE FOLLOWING
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,050,441 $ 2,431,720
Bank indebtedness (256,784) (181,746)
$ 793,657 $ 2,249,974
SUPPLEMENTAL OPERATING CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 85,735 $ 153,844
Interest received 14,270 10,938
Income taxes paid (6,524) 56,583
Investment tax credits received - 203,791

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Posera-HDX Ltd. (“Posera — HDX”, “HDX" or the “Corapy”), is domiciled in Canada and is in
the business of managing merchant transactions withsumers and facilitating payments
emphasizing transaction speed, simplicity and amgyurPosera - HDX develops and deploys touch
screen point-of-sale (“POS”) system software argbeiated enterprise management tools and has
developed and deployed numerous POS applicatiasr® - HDX also provides system hardware
integration services, merchant staff training, eystinstallation services, distribution of electioni
cash registers to a network of value added reselleross Canada and post-sale software and
hardware support services. Through Posera Inc.itansubsidiaries, collectively (“Posera”), the
Company licenses, distributes and markets its talgpi POS software throughout the Americas,
Europe & Asia.

Posera - HDX was founded in 2001 and is headqeattar 350 Bay Street, Suite 700, in Toronto,
Canada M5H 2S6. The Company’s common shares (“ConfBiares”) are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange under the symbol “HDX".

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation in accordance with IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and IFRIC interpretat (collectively “IFRS”) issued that are
effective on December 31, 2012. These consolidéitethcial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on March 27, 2013. These codatdid financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certainvalue through profit and loss financial instrums
which are carried at fair market values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statesé@ntonformity with IFRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions tieat ¢he application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and esgenActual results may differ from these
estimates.

Reorganization

On October 7, 2011, the Company was formed asdt relsreorganization, by way of a plan of
arrangement, which resulted in all of the assetkliabilities of Posera — HDX Inc., except for the
Dexit radio frequency identification device (“RFIpPBusiness assets and liabilities, and certainrothe
assets being transferred to Posera — HDX Ltd. féhmer security holders of Posera — HDX Inc.
then became the security holders of Posera — HIX Rbsera — HDX Inc. (renamed Dexit Inc),
then became a wholly owned subsidiary of Poser®x Htd. On October 28, 2011, Posera — HDX
Ltd. then disposed of Dexit Inc. (Note 3). This ngamization was accounted for as a capital
reorganization transaction at predecessor valugsuéh these consolidated financial statements are
a continuation of the previous financial statemeftiosera — HDX Inc.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements includeattoeunts of Posera — HDX Ltd. and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. These subsidiaries are A&A tRafirbale Solutions Inc. (“A&A”); Posera Inc.
and its subsidiaries: Posera France SAS; Poseop&litd.; Posera Software Inc.; Posera Singapore
and Posera USA Inc. (“Posera”); Century Cash Reglst. (“Century”); HDX Payment Processing
Ltd. (“HDX Payment Processing”); and Posera — HDb&luler Inc. (“Posera — HDX Scheduler”).
HDX Payment Processing and Posera — HDX Schedatee been included in the consolidated
financial statements since the date of acquisiti@ng December 15, 2011 and December 30, 2011
respectively. The subsidiary of Dexit Inc. (fornyefPosera — HDX Inc.) (“Dexit”), which was
formed as a result of the reorganization as disdogbove, was included in the consolidated
financial statements until Dexit was disposed ofmtober 28, 2011 (Note 3).

Subsidiaries are those entities (including spguimpose entities) over which the Company has the
power to govern financial and operating policiegsbSdiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is obtained and are de-consoliifiem the date that control ceases. Intercompany
transactions, balances, income and expenditurdsgains and losses are eliminated.

Presentation Currency
These consolidated financial statements are pregémiCanadian Dollars (“CAD”).
Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currencies of all consolidated ézgiare CAD, with the exception of Posera Inc. and
certain of its subsidiaries, which have functionatrencies of the United States Dollar (“USD")
(Posera Inc. and Posera USA Inc.), the U.K. PotiddR”) (Posera Europe Ltd.), the Euro (Posera
France SAS), and the Singapore dollar (“SGD”) (Pasgingapore). The Company translates the
assets and liabilities of consolidated entitieshwdiffering functional currencies to CAD at theeat

of exchange prevailing at the statement of findrnmaition date and revenues and expenses of those
operations using the average rates of exchangegthie period. Gains and losses resulting from
this translation are recorded in accumulated atbarprehensive loss, a component of shareholders’
equity.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated inéoftinctional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. oreixchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions andhftbe translation at exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currencidwerothan an entities’ functional currency are
recognized in the consolidated statements of dperat
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Segments

The Company has organized its business aroundrefitfeoroducts and services. Each acquired
business is a separate operating segment. The @grtigen aggregates the operating segments into
reportable segments based on the similarities efptftoducts and services that are offered to its
customers, the types of customers that productsandces are provided to, and the methods used
to distribute products and provide services. Théfckecision maker of the company was
determined to be the Company’s Chief Executive deffi(the “CEO"), and as such the Company
determined its reportable segments based uponeiharts the chief decision maker utilized to
evaluate performance and allocate resources. Resdmum external customers are geographically
allocated to countries based upon the place whereustomers are located.

Business Combinations

Business combinations that occurred after Janua®010 have been accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 3, Business Combinations (“IFRS 3"), wdlgy acquisitions of subsidiaries and
businesses are accounted for using the purchadediefhe cost of the business combination is
measured as the aggregate of the fair values éafdkuisition date) of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, contingent consideration apidtyeinstruments issued by the Company in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisitiefated costs are expensed as incurred, except for
incremental costs of issuance of debt or equityrinsents. The acquired identifiable assets and
liabilities are recognized at their fair valuegrat acquisition date. Goodwill arising on acquisitis
recognized as an asset and initially measured sit being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Company’s interest in thefaigtvalue of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

If the Company's interest in the net fair valuetbé acquired identifiable assets and liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, xbese is recognized immediately as a bargain
purchase gain in the consolidated statements ahbpes.

Subsequent to initial recognition, measurementofingent consideration depends on whether it is
an equity instrument or a financial asset or lighilSubsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be anfiral asset or liability is recognized in the
statement of operations as gain on financial insénts through profit and loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is n®imeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognizednithe Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets ,h#ldluding amounts from related parties, are
accounts receivable, lease receivables, investtarrdredits receivable, holdback receivable on the
sale of Dexit, and cash and cash equivalents. Theseclassified into the following specified
categories: loans and receivables, and at fairevidditough profit and loss. Financial liabilitieddie
including amounts due to related parties, are hiadkbtedness, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, vehicle loans, notes payable, royglayable, and the conversion option.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

These are classified into the following specifiategories: other liabilities and at fair value tgb
profit and loss. The classification depends on laeure and purpose of the financial assets or
liabilities and is determined at the time of irlitiecognition.

Accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalentgsiment tax credits receivable and holdback
receivable on the sale of Dexit Inc. are classifisdoans and receivables. Loans and receivaldes ar
initially measured at fair-value, and subsequeatiyamortized cost less any impairment. Interest
income is recognized by applying the effective ri@se rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The conversion option is classified as fair valu®tigh profit and loss, and as such is initiallg an
subsequently measured at fair-value, with any ohangfair-value being recorded through the
consolidated statements of operations.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, bank lnhel@ness, vehicle loans, royalty payable and
notes payable are all classified as other liabditiand initially measured at fair-value and
subsequently at amortized cost using the effedtitezest method. Interest expense is recognized by
applying the effective interest rate, except foorsterm payables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Financial assets are derecognized when the righesceive cash flows from the assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Company has aragdfsubstantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognizedew the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets - impairment

Financial assets are assessed for indicators diimpnt at each financial position reporting date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is dbgeevidence that, as a result of one or more svent
that occurred after the initial recognition of firencial asset, the estimated future cash flowthef
asset have been impacted. Objective evidence @iimpnt could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer @aounterparty; or

« default or delinquency in interest or principayments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will erttankruptcy or financial re-organization.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduay the impairment loss directly for all finaricia
assets with the exception of accounts receivaliherevthe carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When an accountsvedateiis considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent ez@s/ of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changé®inarrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in the consolidated statements of opesatlf, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease catatedrobjectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recoghimgairment loss is reversed in the Statements
of Operations to the extent that the carrying amafnthe asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortized casidwave been had the impairment not been
recognized.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of ageheccounts on deposit at financial institutions
and short-term liquid investments that are readgvertible to known amounts of cash and subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventory

Inventory consists of point-of-sale equipment fesale and service parts, which are required to
fulfill HDX's contractual obligations and have beealued at the lower of average cost and net
realizable value. Inventory cost is substantiatlynprised of the costs paid to purchase equipment.

Investment tax credits

Investment tax credits, are earned as a resulhafriing qualifying research and development
expenditures and are accounted for using the edsiction method. Under this method, investment
tax credits are treated as a reduction of the @ote acquired assets or of the related expemses i
the period that the credits become available, tiermeasonable assurance that the conditions for
their receipt will be complied with and that theugr will be received and it is probable that theély w
be realized.

Long-lived assets - property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”") are carr@dcost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an @ERP&E consists of the purchase price, and any
costs directly attributable to bringing the assetthe location and condition necessary for its
intended use.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated totewdff the cost of PP&E, less their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line methodpliews:

Office furniture and fixture 5 year.
Computer equipme 3 year
POS & ATM Equipmer 3-5 year
Vehicles 5 year.
Leasehold improvemer Life of the leas

An item of PP&E is derecognized upon disposal oenvho future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset on ulgposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of
the asset, determined as the difference betweemethdisposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, is recognized in the consolidated statenof operations.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (connued)

Where an item of plant and equipment comprises me@jmponents with different useful lives, the
components are accounted for as separate itemkamif gnd equipment. Expenditures incurred to
replace a component of an item of property, plantt @quipment that is accounted for separately,
including major inspection and overhaul expendiuee capitalized. Repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the statement of operations duhiagperiod in which they are incurred. Residual
values, method of amortization and useful liveshaf assets are reviewed at least annually and
adjusted if appropriate.

Long-lived assets - Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired individually, are itlifiZzecognized and measured at fair value, and
subsequently at their initial fair-values, lesswmalated amortization and impairment. The fair
value of a group of intangible assets acquired lusiness combination that meet the specified
criteria for recognition apart from goodwill, isl@dated to the individual assets acquired based on
their fair values at the time of acquisition. Whéntangible assets are acquired in a transadtian t
does not constitute a business combination, the aothe group is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basighdir relative fair values at the date of purchase
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are atized on a straight-line basis over their usefugdi

The estimated useful lives of intangible assetsaarfollows:

Technology Asse 5.5- 10 year
Non-Competitior Agreement 1yea
Revenue Sharing Agreem 3year:
Trade Name 20 year
Customer Relationshi 7.5- 10 year
Computer softwal 3 year

The method of amortization and useful lives of Hesets are reviewed at least annually and
adjusted if appropriat

Long-lived assets - Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized, but is instead tested ifopairment annually or more frequently, if
events or changes in circumstances indicate teaitbet might be impaired.

Cash-generating units (“CGUs")

For the purposes of measuring recoverable amoasgsts are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are largely independent cash inflows. Gobdadquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the Company’s CGUs, or grafgSGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each of the Commar§GUs to which goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Company &iclwv goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and is not larger than amatoppsegment. The Company has determined
that the CGUs of the Company are QSR, SabrePothiBézPro; A&A Point of Sales Solutions
Inc.; Century Cash Register Inc.; Posera Inc. (@dubsidiaries); HDX Payment Processing Inc.;
and Posera — HDX Scheduler Inc. During 2012, the@my grouped the Biz-Pro CGU, which was
previously a separate CGU, with the QSR & SabraRo{U. This was the result of the Biz-Pro
CGU no longer having cash-flows independent ofctmeh-flows of QSR & Sabrepoint.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (connued)

Long-lived Assets — Impairment

At each financial reporting date, the carrying amtsuof the Company’s long-lived assets (or
CGUs) are reviewed to determine whether there ysiagication that those assets (or CGUs) are
impaired. If any such indication exists, the regatde amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairmengniy. For long-lived assets (or CGUs) not subject
to amortization, the recoverable amount of thetgsseCGU) is estimated at least annually; or more
frequently if there are any indications of potenimpairment. Indicators of potential impairment
may include, but are not necessarily limited toantitipated competition; loss of a significant
customer; significant deterioration of margin; ches in the regulatory or legal framework in which
the Company operates; or product discontinuance.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is thieehiof fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Fair value is determined as the amount thaldvoe obtained from the sale of the asset (or
CGU) in an arm’s length transaction between knogéathle and willing parties. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are diseolio their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessmentsdirtie value of money and the risks specific to the
asset (or CGU). If the recoverable amount of artagy CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asse€GU) is reduced to its recoverable amount and
the impairment loss is recognized in the Statem&inBperations for the period.

If a CGU is impaired, the impairment is allocatédtfto Goodwill, with the remainder allocated
rateably to the remaining long-lived assets bageohuthe relative carrying-value$Vhere an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the cargmmgunt of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, buthsd the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have beeerm@ied had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or CGU) in prior yeargso@ill impairment losses are not subsequently
reversed. A reversal of an impairment loss is razegl immediately the consolidated statements of
operations.

Lease inducements

Lease inducements represent funds provided byatheidrd for property improvements and rent-
free periods, if any. Lease inducements are apgatton a straight-line basis over the term of the
leases and the amortization is recorded as a fieduntrent expense.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue is comprised primarily of feesihesd for warranty for hardware and software
and support for point-of-sale solutions in advaotproviding the services covered therein.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Convertible debentures

The Company classifies a financial instrument,tercomponent parts, on initial recognition as a
financial liability or an equity instrument in agdance with the contractual arrangement’s
substance. The Company bifurcated the convertieiture into its two components, the; (a) Note
payable and the (b) Conversion option that reptesgmlerivative financial liability. The Company
allocated the total face value of the convertibddehture on the date of the Posera acquisition by
determining the fair value of the conversion optiwith the residual being allocated to the note
payable.

Royalty payable

As part of the acquisition of the Hospitality Assef 2020 ITS Inc., through its subsidiary Posera —
HDX Scheduler Inc., as disclosed in Note 3, the Gamy is obligated to pay a royalty based upon
certain future sales of a technology purchased. rolialty payable was initially recognized at the
present value of estimated future royalties payahler the asset purchase agreement. The liability
will attract interest and will be adjusted in theure for changes in the estimated total payoutund
the royalty agreement. Both the interest accretind the changes in the estimate of the total
obligation will be recognized as charges or creithe consolidated statements of operationsan th
period in which the amounts are incurred

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.nectax is recognized in the statement of income
except to the extent that it relates to items reizegl directly in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the income taxaiso recognized directly in other comprehensive
income or equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on thebtaxacome for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted, at the end of the reponiegod, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

The Company follows the liability method of accduogt for income taxes. Under this method,
deferred income tax assets and liabilities areroéted based on differences between the financial
reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilitiesvell as for the benefits of losses availabledo b
carried forward for tax purposes. Deferred taxna recognized if it arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or the initial recognitiasf an asset or liability in a transaction othemtlza
business combination that, at the time of the @atien, affects neither accounting nor taxableiprof
or loss. Deferred income tax is provided on tempowdifferences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the realeséthe temporary difference is controlled by the
Company and it is probable that the temporary difiee will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurad)ube substantively enacted tax rates and laws
that will be in effect when the differences areexntpd to reverse. Deferred tax assets are recafynize
to the extent that it is probable that future tdeaprofit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Financing - Transaction Costs

Incremental costs incurred in respect of raisingtehor debt are charged against the equity ot deb
proceeds raised, unless the instrument to whichrémsaction costs relate is classified as faineal
through profit and loss in which case the increrakenbsts are expensed in the Statements of
Operations immediately.

Equity - Share-based payments

The Company’s stock-based compensation plan igiledcin Note 20(b). The share option plan
allows Company employees and directors to acquieres of the Company. The fair value of
options granted is recognized as an employee egpeitls a corresponding increase in equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date and eachheaiscrecognized on a straight line basis over the
period during which the options vest. The fair wahf the options granted is measured using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model taking into amgbthe terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted, the estimated volatilityjnested risk-free rate and estimated forfeitures. At
each financial position reporting date, the amaanbgnized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that are expectacst Where the Company issues share-based
payments to non-employees for services or asdssCbmpany measures the goods or services
received, and the corresponding increase in eqiiityctly, at the fair-value of the goods or seggic
received, unless the fair value of the goods oviees received cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case the Company measures the goods or eeméceived indirectly by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments granted.

Equity — Warrants

The Company accounts for warrants by measurindaiheralue of the warrant at the date on which
the respective warrant is issued. When warrantsissged in conjunction with shares of the
Company, the cash proceeds received, net of céahingf costs, are prorated between share capital
and warrants based on the relative fair value ohe#@he fair value of the warrants is determined
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Whearrants are exercised, cash received upon
exercise and the amounts previously credited toamts are reversed and credited to share capital.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cereidn received or receivable for the gross inflow
of economic benefits during the period, arisinghi@ ordinary course of the Company’s activities.
The Company derives revenues from the following cest

a)Revenue from POS systems, digital video recordiiVR”) systems and POS parts and
consumables is recognized when the Company hasferaed to the customer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership, the Company does retain continuing managerial
involvement with or effective control of the goodee amount of revenue can be measured
reliably, it is probable the economic benefits agsed with the sale will flow to the Company
and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respethe transaction can be measured reliably.
These conditions are generally met when the prdaagteen installed. POS and DVR systems
generally include a one year support contract. Thmmpany allocates revenue to each
component of the transaction using the relative failue of each separately identifiable
component. The Company defers the fair value ofstiport services under the agreement, as
deferred revenue at the time of sale. Revenue ®@msupport services is then recognized in line
with the customer support contract policy below.

b) Revenue from customer support contracts is defeaaredrecognized as revenue on a straight-
line basis over the term of the contract.

¢) PCS and hosting service revenue are accountedsfeervices. Revenue is recognized when
amount of revenue can be measured reliably, itdbable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the entity, theage of completion of the transaction at the end
of the reporting period can be measured reliabtiythe costs incurred for the transaction and the
costs to complete the transaction can be measaliathly. Generally PCS and hosting service
revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis theeterm of the contract.

d) Services revenue relates to the delivery of coimguland system integration services with
revenue recognized upon delivery and acceptantieebgustomer.

e) Software perpetual licenses are accounted for Bes s# products as the customer has a
perpetual right to use the software freely and @menpany has no remaining obligations to
perform after delivery of the software. The reveffitom these products is recognized when the
Company has transferred to the customer the sigmifirisks and rewards of ownership of the
software, the Company does not retain continuingnagarial involvement with or effective
control over the software, the amount of revenue lma measured reliably, it is probable the
economic benefits associated with the sale willkfto the Company and the costs incurred or to
be incurred in respect of the transaction can basored reliably. These conditions generally
are met when the application software has beeneateli.

f) Revenue from processing transactions is recogrikzdte time the transactions are processed.
Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the cost of inventory wdizin the period, depreciation, amortization,
impairments, salaries, and other expenditures, wtiiectly relate to the revenue recognized.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Earnings (loss) per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings)(loer share data for its Common Shares,
calculated by dividing the loss attributable to coom shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of Common Shares outstanding dtirengeriod. Diluted earnings (loss) per share
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss htttable to common shareholders and the weighted
average number of Common Shares outstanding foeffieets of all dilutive potential Common
Shares.

Critical accounting judgments
The following are the significant accounting judgreethat were made in the preparation of the

financial statements.
a. Cash-generating units (“CGU"s)

In testing for impairment of certain assets thaidb have independent cash inflows, the
Company is required to group non-goodwill long-tivassets into CGUs which is the
lowest level of assets that produce cash inflowshvhre independent of other assets.

Goodwill is allocated to each CGU, or groups of GGthat is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or grofipirdts to which goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity aticlvhgoodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and is not larger than antmgesagment.

b. Functional currency of consolidated entities.

Under IFRS, each consolidated entity must deterritgrewn functional currency, which
becomes the currency that entity measures its tsesuld financial position in. In
determining the functional currencies of consobkdaentities, the Company considered
many factors, including the currency that mainlfluences sales prices for goods and
services, the currency of the country whose cortipetforces and regulations mainly
determine the sales prices, and the currency tlalyinfluences labour material and
other costs for each consolidated entity.
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POSERA —

HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Critical accounting estimates

Preparation of consolidated financial statementsoimformity with IFRS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thacapph of accounting policies. Additionally,
these estimates and assumptions affect the repamednts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amaifnts
revenues and expenses during the reporting pedatlial results may differ from these estimates.
The following are the estimates that are subjesidaificant estimate and have a significant rik o
causing a material adjustment to the carrying ansoohassets and liabilities:

a.

Intangible asset — December 31, 2012 - $4,701,B@@émber 31, 2010 - $6,220,150) and
Goodwill — December 31, 2012 - $4,330,746 (Decen8fer2011 - $6,639,033), and
related Goodwill and Intangible assets impairmefus the years ended December 31,
2012 - $2,248,885 and $170,979 respectively (Deeendd, 2011 - $nil and $nil
respectively)

« Critical estimates relate to the valuation mtingible assets and goodwill acquired in
business combinations and the potential or actnphirment of intangible assets and
goodwill as part of the CGU impairment testing. $e¢ailed disclosure surrounding
acquisitions including sensitivities on impairmestimates in Note 10 and 11.

Royalty payable — December 31, 2012 - $122,172 diéer 31, 2011 - $471,309) and

related gain on revaluation for the periods endeécBmber 31, 2012 - $399,491

(December 31, 2011 - $Nil)

» See detailed disclosure including sensitivisesrounding royalty payable valuation
estimates in Note 15.

Conversion option — December 31, 2012 - $Nil (Ddmam31, 2011 - $35,556) and related

gain on revaluation for the years ended Decembe2812- $35,556 (December 31, 2011

- $184,810)

* See detailed disclosure including sensitiviiesounding Conversion Option valuation
estimates in Note 18.

Valuation of shares issued in business combinatien®ecember 31, 2012 - $Nil

(December 31, 2011 - $483,076)

« To account for the hold-periods of the respecthare consideration and the number of
shares issued in relation to the total outstandinares of the Company which will
make sale of the shares more difficult, the Compapplied a liquidity discount of
25% in 2011 from the market-value of freely tragabharesA 5% decrease in the
liquidity discount applied would increase equitydagoodwill values by $32,000 in
2011.

Useful life and amortization of intangible assets

* See detailed disclosure of intangible assefubi$ees in Note 2 above. A decrease of
the average useful lives of intangible assets lgdr, would increase amortization by
$216,000 (2011 - $190,000)
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

f. Investment Tax Credits Receivable — non-refundabl@ecember 31, 2012 - $1,262,692
(December 31, 2011 - $1,013,879) and related imvest tax recovery for the years ended
December 31, 2012 - $339,284 (December 31, 20181,$25)

* Management estimates that the non-refundalmiestment Tax Credits receivable will
be recoverable before expiry. See detailed disobosurrounding the expiry dates for
non-refundable Investment Tax Credits Receivabl®dte 7. An annualized 2.50%
decrease in the forecasted taxable income of thity emith the Non-Refundable
Investment Tax Credits Receivable would not caused the tax credits to expire
before use.

g. Provision for income tax and information return péiires — December 31, 2012 - $210,000
(December 31, 2011 - $nil) and related expenditdoesthe years ended December 31,
2012 - $210,000 (December 31, 2011 - $nil)

*  See detailed disclosure surrounding the pramviat Note 14.

IFRS standards issued but not yet effective

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IABBas issued the following standards and
amendments effective for annual periods beginnimgroafter January 1, 2013 (other than IFRS 9,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on after January 1, 2015 and the IAS 1
amendment which is effective for annual periodsidbm@gg on or after July 1, 2012) with earlier
application permitted. The Company has not yet ss&sk the impact of these standards and
amendments. The Company does not intend to eanlyt dlde standards.

() IFRS 9,Financial Instrumentsyas issued in November 2009 and addresses clasisifiand
measurement of financial assets. It replaces thiépheucategory and measurement models in
IAS 39 for debt instruments with a new mixed meament model having only two categories:
amortized cost and fair value through profit orslo$FRS 9 also replaces the models for
measuring investments in equity instruments. Sosthuments are either recognized at fair value
through profit or loss or at fair value through ethcomprehensive income. Where equity
instruments are measured at fair value throughrotieenprehensive income, dividends are
recognized in profit or loss to the extent thatytde not clearly represent a return of investment;
however, other gains and losses (including impaits)eassociated with such instruments remain
in accumulated comprehensive income indefinitelggirements for financial liabilities were
added to IFRS 9 in October 2010 and they largetsiethforward existing requirements in IAS
39, Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurerextept that fair value changes due to
credit risk for liabilities designated at fair valthrough profit and loss are generally recorded in
other comprehensive income.

(i) IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statementgquires an entity to consolidate an investee
when it has power over the investee, is exposedjasr rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the abititgffect those returns through its power over
the investee. Under existing IFRS, consolidatiomeiguired when an entity has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of atite so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
IFRS 10 replacesSIC-12, Consolidation—Special Purpose Entiteesd parts of IAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( continued

(i) IFRS 11, Joint Arrangementsrequires a venturer to classify its interest injomt
arrangement as a joint venture or joint operatimint ventures will be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting whereas for a jointrapien the venturer will recognize its share of
the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenseseofoiht operation. Under existing IFRS, entities
have the choice to proportionately consolidate aprity account for interests in joint ventures.
IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 3mterests in Joint Ventureand SIC-13Jointly Controlled Entities—
Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.

(iv) IFRS 12,Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitjesstablishes disclosure requirements for
interests in other entities, such as subsidiajgés, arrangements, associates, and unconsolidated
structured entities. The standard carries forwaxdstiag disclosures and also introduces
significant additional disclosure that addressribture of, and risks associated with, an entity’s
interests in other entities.

(v) IFRS 13,Fair Value Measurements a comprehensive standard for fair value messant
and disclosure for use across all IFRS standarus.new standard clarifies that fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an assetaat  transfer a liability in an orderly transacti
between market participants, at the measuremerd. dathder existing IFRS, guidance on
measuring and disclosing fair value is dispersedrayithe specific standards requiring fair value
measurements and does not always reflect a cleasurament basis or consistent disclosures.

(vi) There have been amendments to existing stdsdamcluding IAS 27 Separate Financial
Statement§lAS 27), and IAS 28lnvestments in Associates and Joint Vent{ieS 28). IAS 27
addresses accounting for subsidiaries, jointly mdled entities and associates in non-
consolidated financial statements. IAS 28 has la@eended to include joint ventures in its scope
and to address the changes in IFRS 10 — 13.

(vii) 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statementsas been amended to require entities to
separate items presented in OCI into two groupsgdban whether or not items may be recycled
in the future. Entities that choose to present @&hs before tax will be required to show the
amount of tax related to the two groups separately.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

3. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
(a) During the year ended December 31, 2012

There were no acquisitions or divestitures durimgytear-ended December 31, 2012.
(b) During the year ended December 31, 2011

(i) Divestiture of Dexit Inc.(formerly Posera — HDXc.) (“Dexit”)

On October 28, 2011 Posera-HDX Ltd. completed fkestiture of all the issued and outstanding
shares of Dexit which was formed as a result ofrdwganization disclosed in Note 2. The sale
price was an aggregate of $2,031,571 in cash, cutgjecertain post-closing adjustments. Of the
$2,031,571 sale price, $1,831,571 was receivedasing, with a $200,000 holdback as disclosed
in Note 6.

The Company incurred net deal costs on the reargon of Dexit and sale in the amount of $nil
(2011 - $93,981), net of a recovery from the pusehaof $nil (2011 - $125,000), which were
included in General and Administrative Operating&nxditures as incurred.

As part of the divestiture of Dexit the Companyeeed into a standard indemnification regarding
the pre-closing liabilities of Dexit, under whidhet Company believes that an outflow of resources
will be remote. The results of Dexit's operatiorss/é been included in the consolidated financial
statements until the divestiture on October 28,1201

The carrying value of Dexit's net assets on Oct@8r2011 were as follows :

Net Assets:

Cash $ 5,790
Restricted Cash 20,454
Other Current Assets 27,073
Deferred Income Tax Assets 2,000,000
Current liabilities (21,746)
Net assets divested $ 2,031,571

Consideration:

Cash consideration $ 1,831,571
Holdback receivable on the sale of Dexit Inc. (N®e 200,000
Total consideration $ 2,031,571

(i) Acquisition of HDX Payment Processing Ltdrffierly Cash N Go Ltd.) (“Cash N Go”)

On December 15, 2011 Posera-HDX completed the sitigui of all the issued and outstanding
shares of Cash N Go. The purchase price was aegaggrof $397,571, comprised of $157,571 in
cash and 1,000,000 common shares of Posera-HDX awibld-period that were not freely tradable
until December 15, 2013, with a fair-value of $2@W). The acquisition provided the Company
with a payment switch solution to market to itstonser base.

The Company incurred deal costs on the transaofi@mil (2011 - $33,434), which were included
in General and Administrative Operating Expendiuaes incurred.
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POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

3. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES (continued)

The results of Cash N Go’s operations have bedndad in the consolidated financial statements
since December 15, 201During the year-ended December 31, 2012, Cash Mdsogenerated
revenue of $11,731 (2011 - $58) and incurred alost of $555,928 (2011 - $19,389). The
acquisition of Cash N Go is accounted for usingabguisition method. HDX is identified as the
acquirer. The following table summarizes the featue of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and consideration paid at the date ofdbeisition. The cost of the intangible assets
acquired includes Computer Software of $224,481odvdll represented the excess earning
capacity as a result of synergistic revenue oppi&s and cost reductions.

The identifiable net assets of Cash N Go that vaerpiired at fair value as at December 15, 2011
are as follows:

Net Assets:

Cash $ 9,846
Current assets excluding cash 9,243
Property, plant and equipment 67,091
Intangible assets 339,761
Current liabilities (35,800)
Deferred Income Tax Liability (68,904)
Goodwill acquired in business combination 76,334
Net assets acquired $ 397,571
Consideration:

Cash consideration $ 157,571
Share consideration 240,000
Total consideration $ 397,571

(i) Acquisition of certain Hospitality assets 2020 ITS Inc. (“2020")

On December 30, 2011, Posera-HDX completed theisitiqn of certain hospitality assets of 2020,

through a wholly owned subsidiary Posera — HDX $aker Inc. The purchase price was an
aggregate of $999,385, comprised of $285,000 ih,ch945,488 common shares of Posera-HDX,
which had a hold-period, and were not freely tréelaimtil February 1, 2013, with a fair-value of

$243,076, and a royalty payable on future sales odrtain technology acquired, whose fair-value
was estimated at $471,309 on the date of acquisifitne acquisition of 2020 provided the

Company with a complementary technology productesta its existing products, and customer
relationships to market the Company’s products.

The Company incurred deal costs on the transaitidine amount of $nil (2011 - $29,099), which
was expensed in the Statement of Operations asrétuThe results of 2020’s operations have
been included in the consolidated financial statémsince December 30, 2011. During the year-
ended December 31, 2012, 2020 has generated reeé$2€8,304 (2011 - $nil) and incurred net
income of $153,438, which includes the gain on lkeation of the royalty payable disclosed in note
15 of $399,491 (2011 - $nil).Posera-HDX is ideetifias the acquirer. The following table
summarizes the fair value of the assets acquirddialilities assumed and consideration paid at the
date of the acquisition. The cost of the intargidsets acquired includes Customer Relationships
$164,000 and Technology $489,000. Goodwill repreesbthe excess earning capacity as a result of
synergistic revenue opportunities and cost redostiand the assembled workforce.
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(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

3. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES (continued)

The identifiable net hospitality assets of 202( thare acquired at fair value as at December 30,
2011 are as follows:

Net Assets:

Current assets excluding cash $ 20,000
Current liabilities (5,000)
Property, plant and equipment 10,000
Deferred tax assets 72,500
Intangible assets 653,000
Goodwill acquired in business combination 248,885
Net assets acquired $ 999,385
Consideration:

Cash consideration $ 285,000
Share consideration 243,076
Royalty consideration (Note 15) 471,309
Total consideration $ 999,385

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash equivalents is comprised of thevioily
December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Demand accour $ 1050,44: $ 1,430,83
Banker acceptance lring interest ¢ 1.08% with &
maturity date of January 15, 2012 - 1,000,888
Total $ 1,050,441 $ 2,431,720

5. HOLDBACK RECEIVABLE ON THE SALE OF DEXIT INC

As part of the divestiture of Dexit Inc. as disedsn Note 3, $200,000 of the cash consideration
received was held in trust until the Escrow Ageateased the funds on October 31, 2012.

6. LEASE RECEIVABLE

During the year ending December 31, 2012, the Compacognized finance income of $5,759

(2011 - $9,245) in the consolidated financial stasts. The Company's net lease receivable
includes the following;

December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Total minimum lease payments receivi $ 52,88¢ $ 81,69
Unearned finance incor (11,617) (15,585
Total lease receiable $ 41,269 $ 66,10
Shor-term portiol 12,38¢ 30,63¢
Long-term portion $ 28,881 $ 35,469
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6. LEASE RECEIVABLE (continued)

Future minimum lease payments receivable undesdles leases are as follows;

December 31, 2(2 December 31, 2(1
201z $ - $ 36,65:
201z 15,59¢ 14,70:
201¢ 10,73: 9,84(
201t 10,73: 9,84(
2016 10,73: 9,84(
2017 and thereafte 5,09« 82C
Total $ 52,886 $ 81,693

7. INVESTMENT CREDITS AND INVESTMENT TAX CREDITS RE CEIVABLE

Investment tax credits related to Scientific Redeasnd Experimental Design and investment
credits related to Electronic Business, were resiid the consolidated statements of operations as
a reduction in technology expenses in the amou7&0,162 during the year ended December 31,
2012 (2011 - $589,990). As of December 31, 201&ulssidiary of the Company has refundable
investment tax credits receivable totaling $1,087,{December 31, 2011 - $694,602) which is
pledged for bank indebtedness, and non-refundablesiment tax credits receivable totaling
$1,285,589 (December 31, 2011 - $1,013,879) whigire according to the schedule below:

December 31, 2(2 December 31, 20:
2027 $ 118,49: $ 191,30
202¢ 243,66( 243,66(
202¢ 170,77. 170,77.
203( 161,19¢ 161,19t
2031 288,10« 246,94.
203z 280,46t -
Total $ 1,262,692 $ 1,013,879

In order to receive the investment credits and stment tax credits receivable the Company must
file its tax returns no later than 18 months atfter period to which the claim relates.

8. INVENTORY

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Inventory held for resa $ 941,60 $ 913,137
Inventory held as service stc 269,61! 296,48«
Total $ 1211,21¢ $ 1,209,621
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8. INVENTORY (continued)

For the year ending December 31, 2012, the Compapgnsed $3,678,032 (2011 - $4,100,905)
related to inventory consumed. Throughout theafigeriod, the Company assesses the carrying
amount of inventory on hand and determines if amemtory needs to be written-down to net
realizable value. For the year ending December2812 the Company wrote refurbished service
stock down by $29,427 (2011 - $11,790). As at Ddmsy 31, 2012 a total of $1,211,219
(December 31, 2011 - $1,209,621) of inventory isdged as collateral for certain debentures as
disclosed in Note 16. A general security agreeragists in relation to a note payable amounting to
$5,535 (December 31, 2011 - $70,040). Additionall/at December 31, 2012 $59,294 (December
31, 2011 - $70,705) of inventory is secured toaerbank indebtedness which supersedes the
general security agreement. This bank indebtedhassa balance outstanding of $12,426 as at
December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 - $29,944).

9. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (“PP&E")

Accumulate Net bool

Cos amortizatiol value

December 31, 2(2
Office furniture an fixtures $ 79,35 $ 60,37: $ 18,98:
Computer equipme 401,49: 329,37 72,12
POS & ATM equipmer 6,38¢ 63¢ 5,74¢
Vehicles 17¢€,2¢€8 143,14« 35,15¢
Leasehold improvemer 52,68« 20,13 32,55(
Total $ 718,213 $ 553,661 $ 164,552

December 31, 2(1
Office furniture an fixtures $ 81,87 $ 39,77 $ 42.09
Computer equipme 374,96t 256,35¢ 11¢&,607
Vehicles 178,29t 106,18t 72,11(
Leasehold improvemer 28,68¢ 10,627 18,06:
Total $ 663,826 $ 412,950 $ 250,876

The following is a reconciliation of the net boakiwe for PP&E:

Accumulate: Net book valu
Cost Amortization

Balance - January 1, 2011 $ 1,865,125 $ 1,605,262 $ 259,863
Acquisition of PP&t 60,31" - 60,31t
Business combinations (Not) 77,09: - 77,09
Divestiture of Dexit (Note) (1,340,18) (1,340,18) -
Amortization of PP& - 148,34( (148,340
Translation adjustme 1,48: (464, 1,947

Balance - December 31, 2011 $ 663,826 $ 412,950 $ 250,876
Acquisition of PP&t 80,50: - 80,50:
Disposition of PP&lI (10,000 (2,110 (7,890
Amortization of PP&l - 142,46¢ (142,466
Translatiol adjustmer (16,116 35E (16,471

Balance - December 31, 2012 $ 718,213 $ 553,661 $ 164,552
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Accumulate:
amortization and Net book

Cost impairment value

December 31, 2012
Technology assets $ 4,142,354 $ 2,790,501 $ 1,351,853
Trade name 878,809 265,299 613,510
Customer relationships 6,107,833 3,690,163 2,417,670
Non-compete agreements 185,407 185,407 -
Revenue sharing agreement 743,666 661,036 82,630
Computer software 377,582 141,945 235,637
Total $ 12,435,651 $ 7,734,351 $ 4,701,300

December 31, 2(1
Technology assets $ 4,178,355 $ 2,362,31¢ $ 1,816,036
Trade name 882,601 229,175 653.426
Customer relationships 6,124,966 3,045,392 3,079,574
Non-compete agreements 185,407 185,407 -
Revenue sharing agreement 743,666 413,148 330,518
Computer software 354,739 14,143 340,596
Total $ 12,469,734 $ 6,249,584 $ 6,220,150

The following is a reconciliation of the net boaddwe for Intangible Assets:

Accurrulatec
amortization and

Cost impairment Net book value

Balance — January 1, 2011 11,625,739 5,273,717 6,352,022
Amortization - 1,178,10: (1,178,102
Business combinationNote ?) 992,76 - 992,76:
Acquisition 3,32¢ - 3,32¢
Translation adjumen (152,095 (202,235 50,14(
Balance- December 31, 201 $ 12,469,73 $ 6,249,58 $ 6,220,15
Amortization - 1,316,28 (1,316,28)
Impairment Note 11) - 179,97¢ (179,979
Acquisitior 10,57: - 10,57
Translation adjustme (44,65¢) (11,499 (33,159

Balance - December 31, 2012 $ 12,435,651 $ 7,734,351 $ 4,701,300
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11. GOODWILL

Goodwill by reportable segment and C

Net Book Valui Impairment
Before Impairment Loss Net Book Value
December 31, 2(2
Direct Segment
QSF, SabrePoir and BizPrc $ 3,562,67 $ 2,000,001 $ 1,562,67¢
Century Cas 17,54¢ - 17,54¢
Sub-total 3,580,224 2,000,000 1,580,224
POS Software Segment
Poser 2,674,188 - 2,674,188
Poser— HDX Schedule 248,88 248,88 -
Sub-total 2,923,073 248,885 2,674,188
Other Segments
HDX Payment Processi 76,33¢ - 76,33¢
Total $ 6579,61 $ 2,248,88! 4,330,76
December 31, 21
Direct Segment
QSF, SabrePoir and BizPrc $ 3,562,67 $ - 3,562,76
Century Cas 17,54¢ - 17,54¢
Sub-total 3,580,224 - 3,580,224
POS Software Segment
Poser 2,733,591 - 2,733,591
Posere— HDX Schedule 248,88! - 248,88!
Sub-total 2,982,47! - 2,982,47!
Other Segment:
HDX Payment Processi 76,334 - 76,334
Total $ 6,639,033 $ 6,639,033
Reconcilation of Goodwil
Net Book
Value
Balance — January 1, 2011 $,253,605
Business combinations (Note 325,21¢
Translation adjustme 60,20¢
Balance - December 31, 2011 $ 6,639,033
Gocdwill impairmen (i) (2,248,885
Translation adjustme (59,4(2)
Balance — December 31, 2012 $ 4,330,746
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11. GOODWILL (continued

0] During the year ended December 31, 2012, tmpany assessed an impairment of
$2,000,000 related to the goodwill allocated to@®R, Sabrepoint and Biz-Pro CGU
in the Direct POS Segment, and an impairment oD B84 related to the goodwill and
intangible assets allocated to the Posera-HDX 3dbedCGU in the POS Software
Segment, because of the deterioration in the highéne value-in-use and fair-value
less costs to sell. The impairments recorded reflalue-in-use as it was higher than
the fair-value less costs to sell. For the QSR r&abint and Biz-Pro CGU, this was
primarily the result of a reduction in the estinthterminal earnings growth rate as a
result of a downward revision of long-term foresasthereas, for the Posera — HDX
Scheduler CGU, this was primarily the result oéduction in the Years 1 — 5 earnings
growth rate, reflecting the downward revision tce tforecasted sales of certain
technology products. The key assumptions utilizedalculate the higher of value-in-
use and fair-value less costs to sell are detbédolv. These impairments are included
in the operating expenditures in the consolidatatésents of operations.

The following key assumptions were used in caloudpthe higher of value-in-use and fair-value
less costs to sell by CGU as at December 31, 2B&2]jate of the Company’s impairment testing:

QSF,
SabrePoint & Posera— HDX HDX Payment
Biz-Pro Posera Scheduler Processing
Years 1- 5 earnings
growth rate (i) 2-5% 2-5% 10 - 20% 10 - 20%
Termina earnings growtl
rate (ii) 0% 3% 3% 2%
After-tax discount rate (iii) 14% 15% 13% 13%
Pre-tax discount rate (iii) 18% N/A 17% N/A
Probability of synergisti
transaction (f) N/A N/A N/A 50%
® Earnings growth was projected based on pgstrasnce, actual operating results, and
a market participant’s expected view of the 5 yeegcasts of the CGUs..
(i) Earnings were extrapolated further using astaot growth rate, which does not exceed

the long-term average growth rate for the industry.
(i) The discount rate was estimated based upamstindaverage after-tax and pre-tax
weighted cost of capital, adjusted for the specifiks of the CGU.
(iv) The probability of a synergistic transactioaswbased upon management’s assessment
of market opportunities, availability of financiagd other factors.
For the Posera CGU, the higher of value-in-use famdvalue less costs to sell exceeded the
carrying value by $260,000. See below for the tastiimpairment by CGU, if any, as a result of
the specified change to the key assumptions alimisglation.

SF,
Sab?ePoint & Posera — HDX HDX Payment
Change Biz-Pro Posera Scheduler Processing
Reduction of 2.5% (i)  $320,000 $200,000 $40,000 $nil
Reduction of 1% (i)  $110,000 $60,000 $10,000 $nil
Increase of 1% (iii)  $210,000 $170,000 $20,000 $nil
Decrease of 25% (iv) N/A N/A N/A $320,000

Page 26 of 44



POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

12. BANK INDEBTEDNESS

The Company has a $12,426 as at December 31, B&t2inhber 31, 2011 - $28,944) revolving line
of credit, with interest at 6.59% over Bank of Eangl base rate (December 31, 2011 — 6.69%). The
effective interest rate was 7.09% (2011 — 7.19%)tfe year ended December 31, 2012. The
revolving line of credit is secured by a floatingn on assets, with a carrying value of $253,85atas
December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011 - $372,038)elJthe terms of this line of credit, the
subsidiary must satisfy two restrictive covenamibjch are the debtor coverage ratio and interest
coverage ratio. As at December 31, 2012 and Dece®ih011, the Company did not comply with
the interest coverage ratio, and as such, at ttemgpghe bank could withdraw the credit facilityca
demand repayment.

As at December 31, 2012 the Company had utiliz€&d D0 (2011 - $152,802) of its credit

facilities, of an available $191,000 (2011 - $1@Dpto finance investment tax credits. These
facilities bear interest at the Canadian bank priate plus 2.25%, with an effective interest réte o
5.25% (2011 — 5.25%) and are payable in full upsreipt of the investment tax credit receivables
and are secured by a floating lien on current andré investment tax credit receivables with a
current carrying value of $1,087,707 (2011 - $ 602). This facility has been guaranteed up to
80% by Investissement Quebec.

13. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

December 31, 201 December 31, 20:

Trade payablesNote 21) $ 1,876,84 $ 2,143,97
Accrued charge 910,84t 592,868
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ ,287,688 $ 2,736,843

14. PROVISIONS

Provision for inome ta:
and information return

penalties
Balance — January 1, 2012 $ -
Increase in provisions 210,00(
Balance— December 3;, 201: $ 210,00
0] During the year ended December 31, 2012, thepgany became aware that certain

income tax and information returns were past-dug@chvmay be subject to certain
penalties provided by legislation, the amount amdng of which is not certain. The
full amount or a portion of these penalties, argbaimted income tax balances may be
recouped by the Company through an indemnificatigreement, although the amount
and timing of the inflow is uncertain, and as saohasset and recovery is not recorded
in these consolidated financial statements.
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15. ROYALTY PAYABLE

As part of the acquisition of certain hospitaligsats of 2020, as disclosed in Note 3, the Company
agreed to pay a royalty based on future sales tecnstomers as of the date of acquisition, of a
certain technology acquired, which was determimele part of the purchase price. The fair-value
of the royalty payable was estimated on the dasqfiisition to be $471,309. The fair-value of the
royalty payable was determined utilizing a discotate of 11.00%, and is accreted for interest
utilizing the effective interest rate method, regldidor payments, and adjusted for changes in
estimates. For the year ending December 31, 20128$5 (2011 - $nil) in accretion interest
expense and a revaluation gain of $399,491 (20MniH was recorded in the consolidated
statements of operations, due to a revision irefitienated cash-flows subject to royalty.

A reconciliation of the Royalty Payable is asdalb:
Carrying valu

Balance — January 1, 2011 $ -
Recorde on acquisition of certain Hospitty assets of 202(Note 3 471,30¢
Balance — December 31, 2011 $ 471,309
Interest accretic 51,81
Revaluation gai (399,491
Royalty paymen (1,460
Balance — December 31, 2012 $ 122,172

The royalty payable valuation sensitivity to +/- i%revenues applicable to royalties and +/- 1% to
the discount rate is $14,000 (2011 - $26,000) &P (2011 - $51,000) respectively.
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16. NOTES PAYABLE

Carrying Value

December December
# Details 31, 2012 31, 2011

Bank loan with a nominalnd effective interest rate at the Bank of Scotl

base rate plus 2.5%, repayable in monthly principstallments of £500,

with a letter of guarantee from the directors ofé&a Europe Ltd. totaling
1 £35,000 and is unsecured.

Loan from prior Posera shareholders, with a nomimakest rate of 5.00¢

and an effective interest rate of 9.50% due indullApril 36" 2013 and is

unsecured. The terms of this debt were revisedegjtent to December 31,
2 2012 as disclosed in Note 28 to these financidéstants.

$ - $ 5,530

209,214 187,771

Convertible debenture with a nominal interest rafe3.95% and a
effective interest rate of 9.50%, due in April, 301with monthly
installments of USD $33,633 including interest. Thiebenture is
convertible into Class A Common Shares until MayY 812 at $0.645 per
Common Share. As at December 31, 2012 and 2011 cdheertible
debenture is convertible into Nil and 2,035,838 @Guwn Shares
respectively. The convertible debenture is secuvitd the Posera assets
source code, all recodes, accounts, money and gascgerived from the
source code and any part thereof; which, as atrbleee 31, 2012 have a
3 carrying value of $834,902 (2011 - $1,154,665).

Note payable with a nominand effective interest at a rate of 5.50%, v
monthly payments of $5,560 including interest, agdianuary 1, 2013. A
General Security agreement of the Company has pkeelyed as security 5,535 70,040
for the note payable. The assets under the GeBecalrity Agreement have
4 a carrying value of $17,323,952 (2011 - $22,278,473

764,770 1,012,215

Total Notes Payable 979,519 1,275,556
Current portion of the Notes Pays 487,67 300,49:
Long-term portion of the Notes Payable $ 491,842 % 975,063
Fair Value

# December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

1 - 5,28¢

2 203,21( 175,99¢

3 825,45 1,203,70.

4 5,31¢ 68,61«

Total $ 1,033,981 $ 1,453,602
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16. NOTES PAYABLE ¢ontinued

Principal and interest payments required in thd fie& years and thereafter are as follows:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

201z - 484,402
201% (Note 28 590,42¢ 617,68:
201¢ 386,92¢ 410,45
201¢ 165,69 171,02
201¢ and thereafte - -
Sub-total 1,143,054 1,683,566
Less: Interest (163,535) (408,010)
Total $ 979,519 $ 1,275,556

For the year ending December 31, 2012, interestresgoof $202,271 (2011 - $341,940) was
recorded in the consolidated statements of operatiorelation to notes payable.

17. VEHICLE LOANS

HDX uses vehicles in order to perform aspectsobitsiness. Commitments for future payments

of principle and interest on vehicle loans areddisyvs:

Yeal December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
201z $ - $ 28,235
201: 11,14« 17,069
201¢ 11,144 17,069
2015 8,442 8,442
2016 and thereaft 2,392 2,392
33,12: 73,207
Less: Intere: (1,916) (5,332
$ 31,206 $ 67,875
Shor-Term Portiol 10,215 25,749
Lona-Term Portion $ 20,991 $ 42,126

The Company makes monthly loan payments of $9291(20$2,641), which includes interest
payments. The security provided for the loans ésabquired vehicle related to that specific loan.
Interest expense of $1,519 (2011 - $3,058) reldatedrehicle loans was recorded in the

consolidated statements of operations.
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18. CONVERSION OPTION

As part of the purchase price for the acquisitibRPasera on May 1, 2010, the Company issued a
convertible debenture, the terms of which are dsadl in Note 16. The conversion option is
required to be presented as a derivative liabilitger I1AS 32, with changes to the fair-value
recorded in the consolidated statements of ope&tibhe conversion option expired unexercised
on May 5, 2012.

The following key assumptions were used in deteimgithe fair-value at the respective dates:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Fair value of Common Shares N/A $0.33
Volatility N/A 104.86%

Risk free rate N/A 0.95%

Carrying Value N/A $35,556

Sensitivity of +/- 5% volatility N/A $6,000

19. INCOME TAXES
Certain investment tax credits were netted agdhestexpenses which were incurred to earn the
credits, see Note 8. Deferred income tax assetseamded to the extent it is probable that the
Company will be able to recover such deferred inedax assets.

Deferred tax items recognized in net income wesgiduted as follows:

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Deferred tax recovery originated or reversed imantryeir (123,28() (155,635
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferreckt (287,465 (2,000,00C
Effect on deferred tax expense (recovery) from gkarin tax rate (21,693 3,77(
Total (432,439 (2,151,86)
A reconciliation of the deferred income tax liatis and assets is as follows:
Tax losses
& SRED Investment Intangible Royalty  Convertible
expenditure tax credits assets payable  Debenture Other Total
Balance — January 1, 2011 $307,336  $(389,000) 1$80,000) $ - $ (91,0000 $ 15,000 1587,664)
Deferred income tax recovery
(expense) 1,953,974 (90,000) 297,943 173 14,000 218 2,151,865
Acquisitions/Divestitures

(Note 3) (2,000,000) - (101,447) 117,827 - (12,784) (1,996,404)
Exchange differences - - (17,487) - - (17,487)

Balance — December 31, 2011 $ 261,310 _ $ (479,000) _ (1,201,000) 118,000 (72,00022,000) __ (1,399,690)

Deferred income tax recovery

(expense) 370,846 (184,000) 251,592 (118,000) 40,000 72,000 32,488
Exchange differences - - 12,408 - - - 12,408
Balance — December 31, 2012 $632,156 $(663,000) (2B7,000) $ - $ (37,0000 $ 50,000 (9%4,844)

Page 31 of 44



POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

19. INCOME TAXES (continued

A reconciliation between the Company’s statutorg affective tax rate for the year ended December 31
is as follows:

2012 2011
Tax recovery at statutory ri 28.33% 28.25 %
Permanent differenc (18.65) (12.3)
Gain on expired warrants charged directly to e« 2.0¢ -
Effecton deferred tax expense from changes in tax 045 (0.64
Filing adjustment (12.5)) (0.66
Current year losses and deductible temporary éiffegs fol
which no deferred tax asset was recognized (3.49) (11.92)
Recognition opreviously unrecognized deferred tax as 5.91 337.4.
Othel (0.18) 4.7¢
Effect of foreign operatiol (0.54 5.7¢

1.41% 350.69 %

The weighted average statutory tax rate was 28.88%1 — 28.25%), largely due to the Canadian
federal tax rate decreasing from 16.50% to 15.0€fctve January 1, 2012, which was offset by the
higher tax rates applicable in some foreign judsdns.

A reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities andsats to the statement of financial position is as

follows:
Decembe Decembe
31, 2012 31, 2011
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled aftex next fiscal ye: (954,84, (1,472,19C
Deferred income tax assets to be settled aftendRefiscal yee - 7250(
Total (954,849 (1,399,69C

Non-capital losses

No deferred tax has been recorded in respect wsiments in foreign subsidiaries, as there are no
anticipated distributions or transactions in theeseeable future. The company has not recognized
the deferred tax asset relating to a $466,376 (2@&547,000) intangible asset deductible temporary
difference. In addition, the Company has non chpisses available for carry-forward to reduce
future years’ income for tax purposes, which, iised, will expire as follows in the respective
jurisdictions:
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19. INCOME TAXES (continued

December 31, 2(2

Canads United State ~ United Kingdon Singapore
201¢ $ 8,0C $ - $ - $ -
202¢ 9,00( - - -
202¢ 8,00( - - -
203( 14,00( - 11,00( -
2031 1,00( - 72,00( -
2032 558,00( 476,00( 67,00( -
Indefinite - - - 62,00(

$ 598,000 $ 476,000 $ 150,00C $ 62,000
December 31, 2(1

Canads United State ~ United Kingdon Singapor
201¢ $ 13,00( $ - $ - $ -
202¢ 9,00( - - -
202¢ 8,00( - - -
203( 14,00( 49,00( - -
2031 1,00( 261,00( - -

$ 45,000 $ 310,000 $ - $ -

20. SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Authorized and issued

Authorized

An unlimited number of Class A voting common shaf&ommon Shares”), with no par

value.

An unlimited number of Class B non-voting commorargls (“Class B”) — non-voting
convertible into Common Shares at the option otibleler, on a share for share basis, with no
par value. As at December 31, 2011 and Decemhe2@ there are nil Class B issued or

outstanding.

Number of
Common
Common Shares Issued Shares $
Balance, January 1, 2011 45,458,390 49,882,776
Issued upon exercise of options 0] 926,544 424,241
Issued upon acquisitions (Note 3) (ii) 2,049,488 483,076
Balance, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 8,434,422 50,790,093

0] During the year ended December 31, 2011 926,544k stiptions were exercised
representing an increase in share capital of $424¢t which $115,818 was received in

cash, with a weighted average exercise price df2§.
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20.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued

(i) As disclosed in Note 3, during the year ended Déeszrl, 2011, the Company completed
the acquisition Cash 'N Go Ltd. (now renamed HDXrRent Processing Ltd.) ("Cash N
Go"). The purchase price included the issuanck@30,000 Posera-HDX common shares,
which are subject to a 24 month hold period, withiavalue of $0.24 cents.

As disclosed in Note 3, during the year ended Déeegrl, 2011, the Company completed
the acquisition of certain assets of 2020 ITS (now renamed Posera-HDX Scheduler Inc.)
("Scheduler"). The purchase price included theassa of 1,049,488 Posera-HDX common
shares with a fair-value of $0.23 cents, whichsangject to a 13 month hold period.

(b) Stock options and stock-based compensation

Since 2002, the Company has had a stock option(filae Old Plan”) to encourage ownership of
the Company's Common Shares by its key officengctirs, employees and consultants. The
maximum number of Common Shares that may be redeineissue under the Old Plan is
2,000,000 Common Shares. Options under the Ol \Rist over various periods from the date of
the granting of the option. All options granteddanthe Old Plan that have not been exercised
within ten years of the grant will expire, subjéatearlier termination if the optionee ceases to be
an officer, director, employee or consultant of tbempany. The majority of options granted
under the Old Plan were granted to former execsitbféhe Company.

On September 20, 2011, the shareholders of the @myngpproved a new stock option plan (the
“Plan”™). The Plan has a rolling maximum number @in@non Shares that may be issued upon the
exercise of stock options, but shall not exceed dd%he issued and outstanding Common Shares
at the time of grant. Any increase in the totamiber of issued and outstanding Common Shares
will result in an increase in the available numbéroptions issuable under the Plan, and any
exercises of options will make new grants availabider the Plan. Options under the Plan vest
over various periods from the date of the grantiithe option. All options granted under the Plan
that have not been exercised within ten yearseftlant will expire, subject to earlier termination
if the optionee ceases to be an officer, diregoployee or consultant of the Company. The Plan
was established on July 31, 2007, and reapprovedkeptember 20, 2011 was enacted to encourage
ownership of the Company's Common Shares by its dffigers, directors, employees and
consultants.

The Company does not have any current intentiarotwert the options outstanding under the Old
Plan into options under the Plan. The Company dgdn maintain the Old Plan in place until all
outstanding options under the Old Plan are exatasehave expired, at which time the Old Plan
will terminate. The Company will not grant any neptions under the Old Plan.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (continued

The following is a summary of the stock optionsngeal and changes for the years then ended.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number Exercise Number Exercise
Outstanding Price Outstanding Price
Options outstanding, beginning of the year 3,344,39 $ 052 3,633,573 $ 0.46
Granted — employees and directors 1,604,656 0.25 7,563 0.34
Granted — consultants and brokers 250,000 0.28 -
Exercised — employees and directors - - (926,543) 0.13)
Expired — broker compensation (552,665) (0.45) -
Expired — employees and directors (15,000) (0.83) - -
Options outstanding, end of the year 4,631,584 $ 042 3,344,593 $ 0.52
Options exercisable, end of the year 4,266,584 $ 40. 3,144,593 $ 053

The following table summarizes information aboutii@ms outstanding as at;
December 31, 2012

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Number of Weighted Weighted Number of Weighted
Exercise options average average options average
Price outstanding life (years) exercise price exercisable exercise price
0.25 1,784,338 4.17 0.25 1,544,338 0.25
0.28 250,000 4.50 0.28 125,000 0.28
0.30 483,333 2.56 0.30 483,333 0.30
0.34 637,563 3.70 0.34 637,563 0.34
0.40 290,304 291 0.40 290,304 0.40
0.50 400,000 291 0.50 400,000 0.50
0.94 762,596 0.39 0.94 762,596 0.94
2.00 12,050 0.49 2.00 12,050 2.00
2.70 11,400 2.08 2.70 11,400 2.50
4,631,584 3.13 $0.42 4,266,584 $0.44
December 31, 2011
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Number of Weighted Weighted Number of Weighted
Exercise options average average options average
Price outstanding life (years) exercise price exercisable exercise price
0.25 179,682 3.38 0.25 179,682 0.25
0.30 483,333 3.56 0.30 483,333 0.30
0.34 637,563 4.71 0.34 637,563 0.34
0.40 290,304 3.91 0.40 290,304 0.40
0.45 552,665 0.32 0.45 552,665 0.45
0.50 400,000 3.86 0.50 200,000 0.50
0.83 15,000 0.20 0.83 15,000 0.83
0.94 762,596 1.39 0.94 762,596 0.94
2.00 12,050 1.48 2.00 12,050 2.00
2.70 11,400 3.03 2.70 11,400 2.50
3,344,593 2.78 $0.52 3,144,593 $0.53
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (continued

Of the options outstanding and exercisable as aember 31, 2012 nil (2011 — 552,665) options
with an exercise price of $0.45 are broker compimsaptions, and as such are not factored into
the 10% threshold as per the Plan discussed aBalditionally, of the options outstanding as at

December 31, 2012 250,000 (2011 — nil) with an @serprice of $0.28, of which 125,000 are

exercisable as at December 31, 2012 (2011 — nil)¢@nsultant compensation options

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compmaognized an expense of $242,982 (2011 —
$176,469) for the vesting of options issued todoes, officers, and employees, which is included
in Operating Expenditures.

The fair value of each option granted was estimatethe date of the grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weightedenage assumptions for options granted in the
respective period ended:
Yeai endec Yearendec
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Risk-free rate of retul 1.18% 2.07%
Expected volatility (i 110% 105%
Dividend vyielc -% -%

Weighted average expected 5 year 5 year.
Estimated forfeiture ra 0-5% 0-5%

(i) The Company estimated the expected volatilitthe date of grant through reference to the
historical volatility of the Company’s shares owesimilar period.

(c) Contributed Surplus

The following is a continuity schedule of contriedtsurplus.

Balance January 1, 2011 $ 5,752,901
Stocl-based compensation expense recognized during &t 176,46¢
Exercise of optior (308,429

Balance December 31, 2011 $ 5,620,947
Stocl-based compensation expense recognizeing the yee 242,98
Expiry of warrantsnet of tax effect of $101,624 (20- $nil) (Note 1(d)) 665,34¢

Balance December 31, 2012 $ 6,529,278

(d) Warrants

The warrants outstanding are as follows:

December 31, 22 Decembr 31, 201
Number of  Carrying Number of  Carrying
Warrants value Warrants value

Outstanding share purchase warrants to purchase
Common Shares at $0.65 per share. The warrants
expired unexercised on April 27, 2012 Nil $ Nil 5,526,546 $ 766,973

Total NIl $ Nil  5526,546 $ 766,973
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20.

21.

SHARE CAPITAL(continued
(e) Loss per share

The Company uses the treasury stock method of lesileg the dilutive effect of options and

warrants on loss per share. Stock Options, Brdkempensation options, Warrants and
Convertible debenture are only included in the tititu calculation if the exercise price is

below the average market price for the period. filewing is a summary of stock options,

broker compensation options, convertible deberdantbwarrants:

Number Number with  Number with

Exercise issued and dilutive anti-dilutive

price Expiry outstanding impact impact
Stock option Note 20(b) Note 20(b) 4,631,58. - 4,631,58.
Convertible debentu $0.6¢ May 5, 201: - - -
Broker option: $0.45  April 27, 201 - - -
Warrant: $0.6¢ April 27, 201: - - -

A reconciliation of basic to dilutive weighted asge number of shares follows:

(in 000's) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Basic weighted average number of shi 48,43« 45,95!
Dilutive impact of ir-the-money option - 30
Dilutive weighted average number of shares 48,434 45,981

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company recognized revenue from a companyaltat by the CEO, who is also a director of
the Company, during the year ended December 312, 2fdsed on amounts agreed upon by the
parties, in the amounts of $60,025 (2011 - $56,614)e Company recognized operating expenses
related to shared office space and employees, aruhased products of $471,764 during the year
ended December 31, 2012 (2011 - $385,805) from mpaay controlled by the CEO at the
exchange amount based on amounts agreed to byattiesp As at December 31, 2012, the
Company has a receivable position of $12,133 (Déeer31, 2011 - $21,066), and a payable of
$173,254 (December 31, 2011 - $60,632), which kéllsettled between the related parties in the
normal course of business.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compeceived legal fees and disbursement
invoices totaling $63,589 (2011 - $381,685) to\a fam, a partner of which is a director of the

Company. As at December 31, 2012, the Company hmsyable position of $55,159 (December
31, 2011 - $277,747) which will be settled betwake related parties in the normal course of
business.

Compensation of key management

Compensation awarded to key management include€dahgany’s directors, and members of the
Executive team, which include the Chief ExecutivBid@r, President, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Operating Officer and Senior Vice-Presidein€orporate Development, is as follows:
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued

Year ende Year ende
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Salaries and sheterm employee benef $ 922,38: $ 864,41
Sharebased paymer 185,69: 170,46
Total $ 1,108,072 $ 1,034,883

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of the financial assets and liaieiit excluding notes payable approximate their
carrying value as at December 31, 2012 and Dece®beR011. The fair value of the note
payables is disclosed in Note 16. Fair value esémare made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information. These estimates abgestive in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment and therefore cam@odetermined with precision. The fair-value
estimates for notes payable utilized a discountsh-flow valuation method, with an estimated
discount rate of 9.50% as at December 31, 2012 gmdber 31, 2011 — 9.50%). Changes in
assumptions could materially affect estimates.

The Company's financial instruments have been suinetbbelow:
December 31  December 31

2012 2011
Financial asse
Loans and receivabl $6,561,01: $ 7,647,66
Financial liabilitie:
Fair value through profit and Ic - 35,55¢
Other financial liabilitie 4,237,36! 4,733,32¢

23. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Company's risk exposures and the impact of @Gmenpany’s financial instruments are
summarized below.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with meuparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. The Company's credit risk is primasigributable to cash and cash equivalents and,
accounts receivable in the aggregate amount of6$443 as at December 31, 2012 (2011-
$5,673,079). Cash and cash equivalents are held aeittain Canadian and European financial
institutions. The Company has adopted a creditpalnder which the balance of new customers
are analyzed individually for creditworthiness
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23. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS ( continued

before the Company's standard payment terms arditicos are offered. The Company's exposure
to credit risk with its customers is influenced nigiby the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Company's customers are primagigtéa in Canada, the United States, France and
the United Kingdom. The Company has no signifioaamicentration of receivables, which would

result in unusual credit risk exposure.

No financial assets are past due except for tradeivables. As at December 31, 2012, trade
receivables of $1,799,882 (December 31, 2011 - 91674) were current and not impaired,
$1,319,020 (December 31, 2011 - $1,446,125) west gae but not impaired and $64,294

(December 31, 2011 - $146,968) were impaired.

The following table summarizes the changes in th@wance for doubtful accounts for trade

receivables:
December 31  December 31
2012 2011

Balance- Beginning ofyear $ 146,96¢ $ 67,98

Receivables written off as uncollecti (168,950 -

Net provision for impairme! 86,27¢ 78,98’
Balance — End of year $ 64,294 $ 146,968
Accounts receivabl- gros: 3,183,196 3,388,327
Accounts receivable — net $ 3,118,902 $ 3,241,359

b) Liquidity risk

The Company's approach to managing liquidity réstoiensure that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet financial obligations when due through qudid monitoring of working capital balances.
As at December 31, 2012, the Company had a caahdmbf $1,050,441 (2011 - $2,431,720) and
other current assets of $5,671,104 (2011 - $5,380,% settle current liabilities of $5,684,519
(2011- $5,156,738). All of the Company's currennaficial liabilities have contractual
maturities that range between 30 and 90 days amdsalnject to normal trade terms excluding
vehicle loans and notes payable disclosed separatéNote 16 and Note 17 respectively. The
following are the commitments to be settled in ca3ine amounts presented represent the future
undiscounted principal and interest cash flowshlie exception of the royalty payable which is
discounted due to the nature of the liability, #merefore do not equate to the carrying amounts on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

2017 and
2013 2014 2015 2016  thereafter  Total
Bank indebtedness (Note 12) $ 256,78% - $ - $ -$ - $ 256,784
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 13)2,787,688 - - - - 2,78%,688
Income taxes payable (Note 19) 335,973 - - - - 335,973
Vehicle loan (Note 17) 11,144 11,144 8,442 2,392 - 33,122
Provisions (Note 14) 210,000 - - - - 210,000
Royalty payable (Note 15) 3,110 9,080 20,590 24,040 65,352 122,172
Note payable (Note 16 and 28) 590,429386,928 165,697 - - 1,143,054
Operating leases 359,458 236,672 182,219 27,549 - 805,898

Total

$ 4,554,586 $ 643,824 $ 376,948 $ 53,981 $ 65,352 $ 5,694,691
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22. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS ( continued
¢) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise frohanges in market factors such as interest rates
and foreign currency risk.

i) Interest rate risk

The Company has cash balances and interest-batebtg The Company holds cash and cash
equivalents in deposit with certain Canadian anpean financial institutions. The Company
also holds notes payable, with largely fixed inséreates. The Corporation is sensitive to
changes in the prevalent interest rates througrdat income earned on its cash balance and
interest paid on its notes payable. Interest iiakeis low as the interest rates on the Company’s
certificates of deposits, and notes payable agelafixed. Interest rates and maturity dates for
the Company’s certificates of deposits are disdaseNote 4. The interest rates and maturity
dates for the notes payable are disclosed in Naite 1

i) Foreign currency risk

The Company operates on an international basis thedefore, foreign exchange risk
exposures arise from transactions denominatedfamedgn currency. The foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect to the USD, G&#l the Euro.

A $0.05 strengthening of the CDN dollar comparedht® USD, holding all other variables
constant, would increase net income by $60,000€Peer 31, 2011 — $31,000), and decrease
comprehensive income by $30,000 (December 31, 2841,000). The Company has elected
to not actively manage this exposure at this time.

A $0.05 strengthening of the CDN dollar comparedthte GBP pound, holding all other

variables constant, would increase net income h@GkR2(December 31, 2011 - $1,000), and
increase comprehensive income by $2,000 (DecemheP®@L1 — decrease of $3,000). The
Company has elected to not actively manage thiesxe at this time.

A $0.05 strengthening of the CDN dollar comparedtite EUR euro, holding all other
variables constant, would increase net income h@OEL(December 31, 2011 — decrease of
$2,000), and decrease comprehensive income by®L4¥rcember 31, 2011 - $17,000). The
Company has elected to not actively manage thiesxe at this time.

A $0.05 strengthening of the CDN dollar comparedthtte SGD dollar, holding all other
variables constant, would increase net income hQ0Rb (December 31, 2011 — $nil), and
increase comprehensive income by $8,000 (DecembefP(@®L1 - $nil). The Company has
elected to not actively manage this exposure attitme.
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24. EXPENDITURES BY NATURE

The following is a reconciliation of expendituresfanction to expenditures by nature:

Presentation by Nature December 31, 22  December 31, 2(1
Salaries, wages and other employee bel $ 8713,78: $ 8348,907
Changes in inventories of finished go 3,794,66! 4,339,80.
Impairmen 2.419,86 -
Amortizatior 1,458,75: 1,326,44.
Office and utilitie: 1,19(,34% 883,92:
Professional and regulatory fi 839,87( 829,60(
Ren 876,91 742,68¢
Travel, meals and entertainm 787,77 670,34t
Advertising 360,73 327,83¢
Outside servic 317,461 312,62t
Provision for penalties (Note 1 210,00 -
Stoclk-besed compensatis 175,691 176,46
Insuranc 105,86 146,83¢
Bad dek 86,27¢ 144,99:
Otherexpenditure(recoveries 109,0€2 (102,635
Total $ 21,447,088 $ 18,148,841
Presentation by Function

Cost of inventor $ 3,794,90 $ 4,:27,85¢
Technolog 1,888,40: 1,347,08
Operations and supp 4,756,10 4,662,80C
Sales and marketil 3,314,85! 2,981,107
General and administrati 5,272,96¢ 5,02¢,99C
Impairment of asse 2,419,86. -
Total $ 21,447,088 $ 18,148,841

25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's objective when managing capital safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for sharehalderd benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reducecbst of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struetihe Company may issue new shares, sell assets
to reduce debt or issue new debt.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of th# teequity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt aaulated as the sum of bank indebtedness, and
current and long-term notes payable and vehicled@s shown in the consolidated statements of
financial position. Total equity is the equity ditrtable to owners of the Company plus the
conversion option in the consolidated statementsahcial position.
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25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The debt to equity ratios as at December 31, 288iZ2@cember 31, 2011 were as follows:
December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Total Deb
Notes payabl $ 979,51 $ 1,275,55
Vehicle loan 31,20¢ 67,87t
Bank indebtedne 256,78« 181,74¢
Total Debt $ 1,267,509 $ 1,525,177
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Comp $9,487,01t $ 14,165,12¢
Conversion Optio - 35,55¢
Total Equity $ 9,487,018 $ 14,200,681
Debt to Equity Ratio 13.35% 10.74%

26. CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS

December 31, 2(2

December 31, 2(1

Restricted cas $ - $ 208,94
Accounts receivab 141,95¢ (331,682
Holdback on sale of De; 200,00( (200,000
Investment tax crecs and investment credi

receivable (642,007) (297,295)
Income taxes payalt 303,93! (11,2€2)
Lease receivab 2484C (13,135
Inventory (2,289 59,28:
Prepaid expens and deposi (36,417 (3,400
Accounts payable and accruliabilities 79,01¢ (13,207
Customer liabilities - (180,593
Deferred revenu 243,33( 218,90(
Total $ 312,373 $ (563,447)
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27.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company is divided into two reportable segmebisect POS; POS Software, with other
segments not meeting the aggregation criteria bgingped into other. The Direct POS segment
focuses primarily on selling, installing and semvic POS hardware and software directly to end-
users. The POS Software segment focuses primanilgleeloping, licensing, distributing and
marketing POS software both directly to end-usansi indirectly through a dealer network. The
accounting policies of the segments are the santikoss described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. The Company evaluates perfoomabased on the profit and loss from
operations before income taxes, amortization, ésterrealized and unrealized foreign exchange
gains or losses, other gains or losses and othmaprehensive income. The Company manages
each segment separately and management at theofithe acquisitions were retained. Certain
segmented information relating to goodwill is paed in Note 11.

Disclosure by Segment

Operating profit for thiperioc
Revenue for the period ended ended’

Decembe3], Decembe3], Decembe31, Decembe3],
2012 2011 2012 2011

Direct PO¢ $ 8,765,66' $ 9,411,383 $ 504,11¢ $ 680,73
POS Softwar 7,760,501 8,358,61 65,95¢ 1,166,36

Othel 11,73 58 (475,822 (16,124

Intersegmen- POS Softwar (91,799 (69,936

Total $ 16,446,106  $17,699,771 $ 94,251 $ 1,830,979

(i) Operating profit is earnings before corporagadiquarters operating expenditures, interest eggrand expense,

taxes, amortization, foreign exchanges losses aim$ @nd realized currency translation gains agskle.

Reconciliation between the total consolidated afieg profit and the net income(loss) per the
consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Decembe31, 20:2 Decembe31, 211
Total segmented operating pr: $ 94,25 $ 1,830,97
Corporate headquarter operating expendi (1,216,616) (1,134,235)
Other nor-operating expenditur (3,670,859 789,15.
Net (Loss) Income $ (4,793,224) $ 1,485,896

Page 43 of 44



POSERA — HDX Ltd. (formerly POSERA — HDX Inc.)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in Canadian dollars, except as noted)

27. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)

Intersegmen Total
Direct POS POS Software Other  elimination consolidated
December 31, 2(2
Total Asset $ 6,639,00 10,161,04¢ 452,08t (8,01¢) $ 17,244,125
Total Liabilities $ 3,117,66! 4522,83€ 124,62 (8,01¢6) $ 7,757,107
December 31, 2(1
Total Asset $ 10,541,30 11,249,95. 501,82: (14,614 $ 22,278,473
Total Liabilities $ 3,460,10 4,600,03 67,81¢ (14,614 $ 8,113,34
Disclosure by Territory
Revenue for thperioc endet Operating profit for theperioc ende(™®
Decembe31, December3l, Decembe31,
December 31, 2012 2011 2012 2010
Canad $ 10,485,243 $ 11,544,14 $ 831,95 $ 1,831,30.
USA 3,430,51: 3,370,38! (665,343 (97,079
Europ 2,108,04: 2,121,58: (13,059 118,02:
Asia and othe 422,30° 663,65! (59,300 (21,264
Total $ 16,446106 $ 17,699,77 $ 94,25 $ 1,830,97
Canad USA Europe¢ Asia Total
December 31, 2(2
Total Asset $14,579,41¢ 1,908,88. 755,46« 361 $17,244,125
Total Liabilities $ 6,024,16( 1,31¢€,894 363,37¢ 49,67 $ 7,757,107
December 31, 2(1
Total Asset $ 18,238,93 3,035,81! 978,85 24,86+ $ 22,278,473
Total Liabilities $ 6,047,53 1,574,87. 467,50: 23,44 $ 8,113,348

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The loan from the prior Posera shareholders asodisd in Note 16, with a nominal interest rate of
5.00%, due in full on April 302013 was restructured by the Company on Februarg@13. The
terms of the restructuring adjust the payment tetonpay the Posera shareholders $33,633 per
month commencing June 1, 2015 until fully paid, letine interest rate remains unadjusted.
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